ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
April 25, 2002
4:30 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips, Vice Chair
Senator Rick Hal ford

Senat or Ben Stevens

Senat or Bettye Davis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 289 am
"An Act relating to the effective date of a nunicipal manager
plan that has been adopted and to the effective date of the
repeal of a municipal mnager plan, and relating to a special
el ection for mayor when nunici pal nmanager plans are adopted or
repeal ed. ™

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 438(STA)
"An Act relating to notor vehicle registration plates for
di sabl ed veterans; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSHB 438( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 444
"An Act relating to buildings covered under the Al aska public
bui l ding fund; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED HB 444 OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 305(STA) am
"An Act prohibiting certain state enploynent, a student |oan, or
a permanent fund dividend for a person who fails to register for
the mlitary selective service; and providing for an effective
date. ™

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 25, 2002



HB 289 — See CRA mi nutes dated 4/10/02.
HB 438 — No previous action to record.
HB 444 — No previous action to record.
HB 305 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Representative Gary Stevens

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 289.

Ji m Pound

Aide to Representative Lesil MCuire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 438.

Representati ve Jeannette Janes

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 444.

Chris Parce

Director

Di vi sion of General Services

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 444.

Col | een Shaub

Ai de to Representative Lisa Mirkowski
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 305.

D ane Barrans

Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssi on On Postsecondary Educati on
Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnent
801 W10'" St.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 305.

Lance Herrington
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 305.

Nanci Jones
Di r ect or

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 25, 2002



Per manent Fund D vi dend Di vi si on
Departnent of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 305.

Charlie Smith

No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 305.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-25, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN CGENE THERRIAULT <called the Senate State Affairs
Commttee neeting to order at 4:30 p.m Present were Senators
Hal ford, Phillips and Chairman Therriault. Senators Davis and
Stevens arrived | ater

The first order of business was HB 289.

#HB 289

HB 289- MUNI Cl PAL MANAGER PLAN

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, sponsor of HB 289, said there can be
confusion when an election takes place to change the form of a
muni ci pal governnment at the sane tinme as an election is taking
pl ace for the mayor’s position. HB 289 attenpts to protect the
voters’ right to change the form of governnent and give the
comunity some options. He said the bill would make it clear to
the voter to what position they are electing the candidate. It
woul d al so nake it clear to the candi date what position they are
running for. He said HB 289 woul d not take away the right of the
public to change the form of government. They can do this at any
time by having a special election separate from a mayoral
el ection. HB 289 would allow the addition of a year between the
change of governnent and the change of the mayor. He said it
would also allow a special election for the new mayor when the
change of governnent occurred during the current mayor’s term

He said current regulations require the assenbly to enact
provi sions within 60 days of the adoption of a change in the form

of governnent. Havi ng been through that process, he knows that
two nmonths is a very short period of tine to change all of the
borough codes to conply with the new form of governnent. He

noted that under current regulations, a candidate running for

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 25, 2002



mayor will not know until after the election which type of mayor
they are going to be.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said HB 289 was witten with three major
objectives in mnd; first, to protect the rights of the voters to
change the governnent; second, to reduce confusion anpbngst the
voters as to what position they are electing soneone; and
finally, to ensure that a candidate was aware of the position
they were running for and may be el ected to.

SENATOR HALFORD said often a person is running for mayor at the
sane tinme that the managenent question is on the ballot. If a
person elected as mayor wi shed to be a strong mayor and the
voters had approved that form of governnent, the way he reads the
bill, that strong mayor form of governnent would not take effect
for one year. In this situation, the manager woul d be protected
for another year. He noted that the manager is often the person
that people are mad at, especially in a small community.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said HB 289 would give the conmunity and
the assenbly the option to take an additional year to enact the
change in form of governnent. It is possible that the candi date
wi shing for a strong mayor position would be elected but the
voters would decide to stay with the cerenonial myor form of
government or vice versa.

SENATOR HALFORD said it appeared that this situation could happen
in either direction. A candidate wishing to be a strong nayor
could have to wait a year to get the position they wanted or vice
versa.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted there was also an option in the
bill.

SENATOR HALFORD asked how t he option worked.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted the follow ng |anguage on page 1,
lines 7-12:

The manager plan takes effect on the earlier of the
followng: (1) the day after the last day of the term
of the mayor in office on the date the plan is adopted
by the governing body; or (2) one year after the date
the plan is adopted by the governing body.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said this |anguage allows the voters to
make the decision to take an additional year to nake the change.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 25, 2002



CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said after an election, the current mayor is
usually only in office for a couple of weeks before the swearing
in of the new mayor. He asked if the change woul d take place at
that tine.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said state |law requires that the borough
codes be revised to match the new form of governnent within 60
days. Thi s change cannot take place inmmediately because it’'s a
| engt hy process.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT presented the followng scenario. A
candidate runs for mayor wshing to be a strong nayor. The
voters approve a strong-mayor form of governnent. The current
mayor, a cerenonial nmayor, is at the end of their term The

change woul d take place when the cerenonial mayor’s term ended.
This would be a short tinme after the el ection.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said that was correct.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if they decided after the el ection how
| ong was going to be allowed to nmake the change.

SENATOR HALFORD said the problem was that it wasn’'t clear unti
after the election which form of governnment was going to be in
pl ace.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if the information regarding the form
of governnment and when the change would take place was on the
bal | ot.

REPRESENATI VE STEVENS said it should be.

SENATOR HALFORD said the followng scenario could happen. A
strong mayor is elected and a strong mayor form of governnent is
approved. The assenbly would then have 60 days to adopt the
pl an, but the plan doesn’'t take effect for one year or until the
term of that mayor expires. The assenbly could call for the
ending of the term of the mayor that was just elected and have a
special election for a new mayor under the new form of
gover nnment .

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said the termof office to which the mayor
had been el ected nust be respected.

SENATOR HALFORD quoted the follow ng | anguage from page 2, line
11:

Not wi t hstanding AS 29.20.230, a nunicipality may by

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 25, 2002



ordi nance provide that, when a nmanager plan takes
ef fect under AS 29.20.480(a)(2) or when a repeal of a
manager plan takes effect under AS 29.20.520(2), the
termof office of the incunbent nmayor ends.

He said this appeared to end the term of the mayor, even if the
mayor had just been el ected. Per haps there is sonebody who can
explain how this works to the conmttee. He is concerned because
the factions in sonme of the small conmunities don’t change their
m nds all at once. There can be differences of opinion between
the assenbly nenbers. The community can be divided on the two
candi dates for mayor and the form of governnent they want.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he was thinking of a different scenario
in which sonebody running for mayor intending to be a cerenoni al
mayor now finds hinself or herself with a full time job. He

noted that an election for a change in the form of governnent
coul d al so happen hal fway through the mayor’s term of office.

REPRESENATI VE STEVENS said this could happen by special election.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if there was sonebody from the State who
could explain this.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said sonebody from the Alaska Mini cipal
League had been there but they had to | eave.

There was no further testinony.

SSHB 289am was held in committee.
#

The next order of busi ness was HB 438.
#HB 438

HB 438- DI SABLED VETERANS LI CENSE PLATES

MR JIM POUND, Aide to Representative Lesil MQ@iire, sponsor of
HB 438, said the Legislature has repeatedly honored veterans.
The nost noticeable form of recognition has been the special
|icense plates that signify branches of service, Purple Heart
recipients and Medal of Honor recipients. However, there are
approxi mately 900 disabled veterans who are only recogni zed by
the standard bl ue-and-gold Alaska license plate with the letters
D-A-V. He said HB 438 would change that |icense plate to a red,
white and blue license plate, an exanple of which is in the bil

packet . These license plates would be available in tw forns,

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 25, 2002



one for veterans who are eligible for special parking and one for
those who are not. Al disabled veterans who neet the standard
muni ci pal tax deduction requirenment of 50% disability would be
eligible for these license plates. He said HB 438 has a zero
fiscal note because the Division of Mdtor Vehicles is running out
of the blue-and-gold disabled veterans’ |icense plates.

SENATOR HALFORD said the existing law, which also appeared on
page 2, lines 14-16 of HB 438, stated, “or a resident 65 years of
age or older who files a witten application for an exenption on
a formprescribed by the departnent.” He asked what the basis of
that exenption is.

MR. POUND said he did not know.
There was no further testinony

SENATOR HALFORD noved HB 438 from commttee with attached zero
fiscal note and individual recommendati ons.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if there were any objections.

There being no objection, HB 438 noved from conmttee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

#

The next order of business was HB 444.

#HB 444

HB 444- ALASKA PUBLI C BUI LDI NG FUND

REPRESENTATI VE JEANNETTE JAMES, sponsor of HB 444, said the
Al aska Public Building Fund (PBF) was established a couple of
years ago for a trial period. The buildings listed in that
| egi sl ation were the Alaska Ofice Building in Juneau, the Robert
B. Atwood Building in Anchorage, the Fairbanks Regional Ofice
Bui | di ng, the Juneau Comunity Building, the Juneau Public Safety
Building and the State Ofice Building in Juneau. The PBF
establishes a nethodology for <charging rent to the various
agencies and/or other outside interests that use space in these
bui | di ngs i ncluding an amobunt for depreciation. After paying for
heat, light and other mnor maintenance itens, the additional
noney from the fund could be used to keep up the naintenance.
She noted that the State has a deferred nmintenance |ag, neaning
that virtually no maj or mai ntenance was bei ng done. She said the
fund gives the State a little nore noney to keep things from
runni ng down over a period of tinme. She noted that this two-year

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 25, 2002



trial period has been successful. HB 444 would allow all of the
buil dings that have been transferred from the Departnent of
Transportation (DOT) to the Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA) to
be “covered buildings.” HB 444 would also keep the PBF as a
permanent program The State would be able to nove forward with
the fund and allow the same process on other buildings that may
be transferred to DQCA

SENATOR HALFORD asked if HB 444 only applied to buildings that
have cone from DOT to DQCA

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES sai d yes.

SENATOR HALFORD noted that the fiscal note said HB 444 all ows for

the expansion of the PBF approach. The way he reads the
definition, he is concerned that HB 444 my nandate the PBF
appr oach. He wanted to make sure that the process was

per m ssi ve.

REPRESNTATI VE JAMES said DOA went through another process to
reach the deci sion.

RECESS UNTIL 4:55 P.M

CHAl RMVAN THERRI AULT called the Senate State Affairs Conmttee
back to order. He asked if Representative Janmes had concl uded
with her comments.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES sai d she had.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if sonebody from the State could
explain how the PBF worked and how the noney cane into and went
out of the fund.

CHRIS PARCE, Director of the D vision of General Services,
Departnent of Admnistration, said one of her duties was to
manage the PBF. She said DOA determ nes the cost of running the
buil dings including the depreciation of the facilities. Those
costs are spread over the total rentable square feet and the rent
is collected fromthe tenants. Those funds are used to pay for
utility bills, general janitorial services and other itens of
that nature. She noted that one of the main goals of the PBF was
to be able to collect the depreciation dollars and be able to use
them on major naintenance projects. She pointed out that the
Al aska O fice Building was being roofed at the nonment. She said
t he PBF was wor ki ng marvel ously.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked how much noney was ear ned.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 25, 2002



MS. PARCE said the eight buildings brought in about $6-7 mllion.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if that showed up in the capital
budget .

M5. PARCE said the noney cones into the operating budget. The
PBF is a sub-fund of the general fund and is a dedicated fund.
DOA pays the bills out of the PBF and takes care of nmjor
projects as they can afford to.

5:00 p.m

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked how DOA got authorization for the
expendi t ures.

MS. PARCE said the Legislature approved the expenditures through
the operating budget in the first two years of the PBF. 1In the
budget that is before the Legislature now, she has requested that
the depreciation dollars be called CIP funds so they can be used
t hroughout the construction season. She said major construction

projects don’t get started until April or May. If she had to
stop these projects on June 30'", the noney can't be used
effectively. The depreciation purposes of the PBF have been

noved to be able to roll over the year.

SENATOR HALFORD asked how many nore buil di ngs or how nuch nore in
val ue HB 444 woul d add to the PBF.

M5. PARCE said HB 444 wouldn’'t add any nore buil di ngs. HB 444
woul d allow nore buildings to be added if they becane attractive
to the PBF. She noted that one of the main mssions of the PBF
is to replace general fund dollars with other kinds of revenue
streans. In order for a facility to be attractive for PBF uses,
it would need to bring in new noney for the State. |f a building
were housed totally by the general fund, it wouldn't be quite as
attractive because it wouldn’t bring in new noney.

SENATOR HALFORD said he thought it would | ose noney.

MS. PARCE agr eed.

SENATOR HALFORD said it would have an operating budget inpact if
there was the cost of operation that was normally in the
operating budget plus the reserve for naintenance. That woul d
cost nore than it would ot herw se.

M5. PARCE said DOA wouldn’t just take all of the buil dings.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 25, 2002



SENATOR HALFORD sai d saving reserves for maintenance m ght not be
a bad i dea.

MS. PARCE said DOA | ooked at the makeup in the tenants of each
bui | di ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said originally, Retirenent and Benefits had
not been paying rent. She said that was collected in a different

fund. The State also cannot collect rent from the federal
agencies in the facilities unless all of the agencies in the
buil ding are charged rent. She said when DOA was naking its

deci sions, those federal agencies needed to be included to nake
it a benefit financially. She said the kinds of maintenance the
PBF was able to achieve wouldn’'t get done otherwi se w thout a
speci al appropriation.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the federal agencies housed in the
state buildings had been paying rent.

M5. PARCE said they had not. Their costs had been covered
through the regular operating budget of DOT. DOT was managi ng
these buildings and would put forth a proposal to pay for the
bills of the buildings. She said she supposed DOT could have
asked for funds for depreciating itens. However, she didn't
think that they had done so because there is a great deal of work
t hat never got done.

There was no further testinony.

SENATOR DAVIS noved HB 444 from committee with attached zero
fiscal note and individual recommendati ons.

There being no objection, HB 444 noved from comrmttee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

#

The final order of business was HB 305.

#HB 305

HB 305- NONCOVPLI ANCE W TH SELECTI VE SERVI CE

COLLEEN SHAUB, Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski, sponsor of
HB 305, said the intent of this legislation is to ensure that al

Al askans are know edgeabl e  about the Selective Service
regi stration systemand would register pronptly. She said HB 305
would require any U S. nmale citizen between the ages of 18-26 to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 25, 2002



conmply with the federal Selective Service registration if
applicable to be eligible for certain state enploynent, an Al aska
Student Loan (ASL) or the Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD). She
said at |least 28 other states had inplenented simlar conditions
for eligibility for certain prograns and state benefits. Federal
law already requires registration with the Selective Service
wi thin 30 days of turning 18. At the federal |evel, a person who
does not register will be denied certain federal enploynent and
ai d. She said HB 305 brings those aspects down to the state
| evel and adds the provision on the PFD. She said the sponsor
woul d i ke the conmttee to adopt the foll ow ng amendnent:

Page 4, following line 8:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 3. AS 14.43.172(c) is anended to read:

(c) In addition to the provisions of (a) of this
section, a borrower is eligible for a |I|oan under
AS 14.43.170 - 14.43.175 if the borrower

(1) is not delinquent on and has never been in
default on a | oan previously awarded by the comm ssion;
(2) at the time of application or |oan

di sbursenent does not have a past due child support
obligation established by court order or by the child
support enforcenent division under AS 25.27.160 - 25.27.220;

(3) has not, within the previous five years, had
a loan discharged or witten off by the conm ssion for any
reason;

(4) does not have a status, at the tine of
application for a loan or disbursenent of |oan noney, that
woul d prevent the borrower from repaying the loan as it
becones due;

(5) has not wthin the previous five years
defaulted on another |oan nmade to the borrower by a | ending
entity unless the borrower can show good faith efforts to
repay the loan and extraordinary circunstances that led to
the default; [ AND]

(6) does not have a credit history, at the tinme
of application for a loan, that denonstrates chronic
inability or unwillingness to pay an extension of credit or
| oan as it becomes due; and

(7) has conplied wth the mlitary selective
service registration requirenents inposed under 50 U.S. C
App. 453 (Mlitary Selective Service Act), if those
requirenents were applicable to the person, or the person
has cone into conpliance within 30 days of being notified of
the person's lack of conpliance."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 6, line 12:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 25, 2002



Del ete "a student™
I nsert "an education | oan, supplenental education |oan,"”

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked where the sponsor was.

M5. SHAUB said Representative Mrkowski was in the fisca
di scussi on neeting.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if she had concluded her remarks. He
al so asked if there was any obligation under federal |aw for the
State to try and conpel Selective Service registration. He said
usually when a short title was put in, it was a section of the
st at ut es. But the |language in HB 305 appears scattered
t hroughout the statutes and it has a title. He asked why this
was done.

M5. SHAUB said the sponsor wanted the title to seem |ess
abr asi ve.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said the title would be in the uncodified
section of the statutes whereas the operative |anguage woul d be
spread throughout the statutes. He used the exanple of a new
crine being added to the statutes where the title would appear in
the regular statute along wth the new crine | anguage. He noted
that with HB 305, they wouldn’t even be in the sane book. He
said this seenmed strange to him

DI ANE BARRANS, Director of the Al aska Comm ssion on Postsecondary
Education (ACPE), said HB 305 did not reference the new student
| oan prograns that would go into effect July 2002 but were not
yet in statute. The anendnent in the bill packet references the
new AS 14.43.172 that contains the new Alaska Supplenental
Educati on Loan Program The requirenent for Selective Service
registration would be added to the requirenents for the | oan.
The amendnent ensures that the changes the sponsor wanted to nake
to the ASL program were carried through to the new | oan as well.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked how soneone would prove that he had
conplied with Selective Service registration when he applied for
t he ASL.

MS5. BARRANS said ACPE proposed to verify registration in a way
that woul d cause no additional cost to ACPE. ACPE would require
prospective borrowers to fill out the Free Application for
Federal Student Aid, which they would need to do anyway to be
eligible for the new Al aska Supplenental Loan Program The U S
Depart ment of Education would then send the application through a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 25, 2002



data review, perform ng matches against the Immgration Service,
the Selective Service, the Internal Revenue Service and other
such agencies, to ensure that the borrower was eligible for their
| oan. ACPE would take eligibility for the federal |oan as an
assurance that the borrower met the Selective Service
requirenent.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the borrower would be required to
fill out this formevery year.

M5. BARRANS said the borrower would have to fill out a renewal
formthat would have the data fromthe prior year and they would
sinply have to update changes to that information

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT pointed out the exenptions listed in Sec. 4
of HB 305 and asked why these enpl oyees woul d be exenpt.

M5. SHAUB said she believed these enployees were already exenpt
under federal |aw

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said a |legislator could take coll ege courses
and get a student | oan. He asked why they woul d be exenpt.

M5. BARRANS said Sec. 4 nmakes it a requirement to register for
Sel ective Service in order to be enployed in certain job cl asses.

SENATOR STEVENS said it was federal law that being elected to a
position, exenpted a person froma |lot of requirenents. He said
that if a person had been convicted of a felony, they would not
be eligible to be hired for or appointed to certain positions.
However, they could be elected to that position.

SENATOR HALFORD pointed out that the mayor of Washington, D.C
Marion Berry, had been convicted of cocai ne possession.

LANCE HERRI NGTON said he was on the tel econference in the event
that Charlie Smth was not avail abl e.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said the question of Selective Service had been
on his questionnaire and he received a |l ot of coments asking why
females weren’'t required to register for Selective Service. He
said he knew that this was federal |aw but wondered if there was
a push to include fenales.

MR. HERRI NGTON said he was not enployed by the Selective Service
so he didn’t know what they were or were not doing. He didn’t
believe that they were under any pressure to register femal es at
this tine.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 25, 2002



NANCI JONES, Director of the Permanent Fund Dividend Division,
noted the |anguage on page 6, lines 2-8, “cone into conpliance
within 30 days of being notified of their lack of conpliance.”
This would establish a different tinme frame for PFD applicants
who didn’t conmply with Selective Service registration versus
everybody el se that applied for the PFD. She said this would be
difficult to adm nister. She noted the Division already had an
agreenent wth the Selective Service. The Division would send
Sel ective Service a tape of people who would be eligible for the
requi renent and the Selective Service would send that tape back
with a list of people who had registered. The Division would
match the tape against a list of PFD applicants. |If a person had
not registered for Selective Service, the Division wuld send
them a notice. That notice would be the sanme notice that
everybody else who has an inconplete application receives
establishing a tinme frame to get additional information to the
Di vi si on. The applicant would have until the given date to
register with Selective Service. The Division wuld get another
tape from Selective Service to verify that the applicant had
regi stered.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if the applicant could send a photocopy
of their registration or if they had to wait for the information
to get in the system

M5. JONES said the applicant would have to wait. In the first
year of the Selective Service requirenent, the Division
woul d ask Selective Service to send two tapes at two
different tines of the year. The effective date of HB 305
is January 1, 2004, so the first tape would include
everybody who had registered with Selective Service from
January 1 through Decenber 31, 2003. She said that tape
woul d be mat ched agai nst the applications for the 2004 PFD
A notice would be sent to the applicants that were out of
conpliance saying that +they needed to register wth
Sel ective Service before Cctober 31. Another tape would be
received from Selective Service, which would be run just
before paynent, probably in August. She said if the
applicant was not on that tape, then they would be denied
their PFD along with everybody else who did not respond to

the Division s correspondence. For the second year, 2005,
the Division would al ready have the tape from August. The
Division would receive a tape each year in August. She is

concerned that the 30-day provision would give the applicant
a false sense that sonething could get turned around that
qui ckly. The applicant has ten nonths to conply wth
what ever they are lacking on their application. She said

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 25, 2002



there is always the opportunity to appeal a denial or extend
the length of tine you have to conply with a request if you
work with the Division.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if the Selective Service tape could include
| ocati on.

M5. JONES said the Division wouldn't necessarily need that
information. They would only be interested in whether a person
had regi stered or not.

SENATOR HALFORD said that could be an inportant residency
crosscheck. He said sonetines people register where they are,
not where they cane from He noted that during the Vietnam War
people would register in nore popul ated areas because they felt
the draft board wouldn’t get further down the nunbers.

M5. JONES said at sone point the Division could use the Selective
Service for residency but she guessed that if a person didn't
register with an Al aska address, they wouldn’t be on the tape.

SENATOR HALFORD said you registered for Selective Service in a
certain geographical |ocation. He thought it would be a good
idea to put that into the Division s database. When sonebody
registers in a location that’s not in Alaska, there’'s an
indication that they ought to be checked for residency unless
they’re in active duty by the time the D vision gets the
appl i cation.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked how the Division would catch up with
sonebody who lived in Florida and noved to Alaska after they
turned 18. He asked if the Selective Service was going to run a
t ape agai nst the entire nation.

M5. JONES said Selective Service would just run a tape for the
peopl e who are registered in Al aska.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked about soneone who lived in Al aska but
registered in Florida when they turned 18.

M5. JONES said that would be up to the applicant. When the
Division sends them a letter saying they’'re not in conpliance,
they would give the Dvision that infornmation. The Division
woul d then verify those few with Sel ective Service. She said the
men between 18 and 25 woul d be mat ched agai nst the tape Sel ective
Service gives the Division, so if an applicant is between those
ages and is not on the tape, they would receive a letter. She
noted that if any of the identifying information was wong, such

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- April 25, 2002



as the Social Security Nunber, the Division wouldn’t be able to
make a match and they would receive a letter. The applicant
could then say that they had registered and provide the Division
Wi th proof.

SENATOR HALFORD said if the Division was only going to get the
match from Al aska, the system would do what he wanted it to do
because the applicant who didn't register in Al aska wouldn't get
a match and the Division would ask them to prove that they had
regi stered for the Selective Service. The applicant would then
say that they had registered sonewhere else. He said that would
at least raise a flag that that person ought to be checked for
resi dency. He would like it to be one nore piece of the
resi dency package that is in the system

M5. SHAUB noted the requirenment also wouldn't apply to soneone
who wasn’t in the 18-26 age range. Those applicants would stil
get their PFD.

SENATOR HALFORD agreed that it only applied when you were
required to register with Sel ective Service.

M5. SHAUB said once soneone turned 26, if they had never
registered with the Selective Service, they would still be able
to get their PFD

SENATOR DAVIS noved Anmendnent #1 adding the Selective Service
requi renent to the new student | oan program

The bei ng no objection, Arendnent #1 was adopt ed.

CHARLIE SMTH, State Director of the Selective Service in Al aska,
said his position was an unconpensated volunteer federa
position. He has been in the position for about six years. He
said he was avail able to answer any questions the conmttee m ght
have specific to the Sel ective Service.

TAPE 02-25, SIDE B

5:30 p. m

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the Permanent Fund D vi dend D vision
woul d be sending information to M. Smith to try to contact the
i ndi viduals who didn't register with Sel ective Service.

MR. SM TH said that would be done through the national conputer

center. He said he is mainly involved with selecting people to
be on the draft board. He said there still is a draft board even

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 25, 2002



t hough there hasn’'t been a draft since 1973. He al so has five
Nati onal Guard Reserve Forces Oficers assigned to him They
have offices in Juneau, Anchorage, None and Fairbanks and if the
draft ever gets reactivated, those offices wuld be reactivated.
He said Alaska has alnbst a 90% conpliance rate wth the
Sel ective Service. He said not too many people objected to being

on the list. He noted that it was just a list. If the draft
should cone in, there would be other protections. The President
and the Congress would have to declare a draft. He has found
that the mpjority of people that do not register are not aware
that there’s a requirenent to register. He said they ve tried
newspapers. He said he has a person working with himin every
hi gh school in Alaska, usually a counselor, to help by letting
the young nmen know that there’s a requirenent. However, 10-15%
of these people still slip through the cracks.

He said other states have done this through the drivers’
licensing system |If a person doesn’'t register for the Selective
Service, they wouldn’'t be able to receive a drivers’ |icense.
From his work as a deputy director and director of notor
vehi cl es, he knows that there are a |lot of people who don't get
drivers’ licenses. He hopes HB 305 would be a better vehicle to
pronote registration.

SENATOR PHILLIPS asked M. Smth to refresh his nenory as to why
females weren’t included in the draft.

MR SMTH said it was federal |aw He said about 10 years ago
there was an ERA novenent to get females included, but it died
of f.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said he had a lot of coments on his

questionnaire that this was not fair. He even had one
constituent send him a letter requesting Stevens, Mirkowski and
Young to introduce legislation to get females included. He

foll owed through on that. He thinks they out to be included.

MR SMTH said his job is to get things that conply with the
current federal |aw going.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if we were making a request of Mirkowski,
Young and Stevens to draft wonen.

MR. SM TH said he hadn’t thought about it.
CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if Representative Lisa Mirkowski, the

sponsor, would have a problem with deleting Sec. 1 of HB 305,
which was the title. He said titles usually appear with the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 25, 2002



| anguage in the statute and this title would be in the uncodified
law with no | anguage to acconpany it. He doesn’'t see the need to
have the title in the uncodified |aw when there’s nothing there
wth it. He asked if other nenbers of the comrmittee shared his
concern.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS noved Amendnent #2.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT clarified that Anendment #2 woul d del ete Sec.
1.

There bei ng no objection Anendnent #2 was adopt ed.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he thought he understood what the
sponsor was trying to do in giving the readers of HB 305
sonething to |l ook at other than the legislative title. But since
this was close to being put in law, he didn’t see the need for
it.

M5. BARRANS referenced the | anguage in HB 305 on page 4, lines 7-

8 and in Anmendnment #1 on page 2, lines 1-2, stating, “or the
person has conme into conpliance within 30 days of being notified
of the person’s |ack of conpliance.” She said this would

actually reduce a person’s opportunity to receive a student |oan
and be considered eligible. She said if an applicant is denied
they can reapply at any tinme during school enrollnent. She was
concerned that this |anguage seens to |imt that opportunity to
the 30 days following the denial. She requests that |anguage be
struck fromboth the bill and the anmendnent. She al so noted that
the effective date had been changed from a prior version of HB
305 to January 1, 2004. Wth respect to the education |oan
sections, HB 305 would conme into effect in the mddle of a |oan
year . She said this would be a problem because sone borrowers
woul d have been approved w thout the requirenent earlier in the
| oan year and others would be required to register with Sel ective
Servi ce during the second half of the sane |oan peri od.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was a problem with the 30-day
provision to conme into conpliance wth Selective Service
regi stration.

M5. SHAUB said she believed this was anended on the House floor.
She believed the Representatives had not realized that you could
reapply or appeal with both the PFD and the ASL. She believes it
woul d be fine to renove that |anguage.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked if they just added that specific
| anguage.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 25, 2002



M5. SHAUB said they had. She said it was done so that if sonmeone
didn't realize that they had to register with Sel ective Service
when they filled out their application and be denied as a result,
they weren't unduly punished. She said they could always go back
and reapply or appeal for the PFD or the ASL.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said he’d like to work with the drafters and
Representative Mirkowski to make sure that in incorporating the
anendnents and dropping the 30-day provision they didn't create
ot her probl ens. He said the bill would cone back before the
commttee for final action.

HB 305 was held in committee.
#

ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
State Affairs Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 5:40 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 25, 2002



